ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 25, 2003
3:30 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn, Vice Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Carl Gatto

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative David CGuttenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 111
"An Act extending the termnation date of the Regulatory
Comm ssion of Al aska; and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 111(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 232
"An Act relating to nercury classics; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED HB 232 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 242
"An Act relating to licensing of certified public accountants.™

- MOVED CSHB 242(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 199
"An Act renoving the annual adjustnment to the m ni num wage based
on the rate of inflation; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED HB 199 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BILL NO. 56
"An Act relating to the attorney fees and costs awarded in
certain court actions relating to unfair trade practices; and,

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- April 25, 2003



if considered court rule changes, anending Rules 54(d),
82, Al aska Rules of Civil Procedure.”

- MOVED CSHB 56(L&C) OUT OF COWM TTEE
PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 111
SHORT TI TLE: EXTEND REGULATORY COWM SSI ON OF ALASKA

79, and

SPONSOR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR
Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action
02/ 19/ 03 0250 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 03 0250 (H) L&C, FIN
02/ 19/ 03 0250 (H FN1: ( CED)
02/ 19/ 03 0250 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER
03/ 10/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
03/ 10/ 03 (H Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( L&C)
03/ 17/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
03/ 17/ 03 (H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed to
3/ 19>
03/19/03 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
03/ 19/ 03 (H Heard & Hel d <Subcommittee
Assi gned>
M NUTE( L&C)
03/ 27/ 03 (H L&C AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
03/ 27/ 03 (H) M NUTE( L&C)
04/ 10/ 03 (H L&C AT 2: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
04/ 10/ 03 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --
04/ 15/ 03 (H) L&C AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
-- Subconmm ttee neeting --
04/ 23/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
04/ 23/ 03 (H) Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( L&C)
04/ 25/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
BILL: HB 232

SHORT TI TLE: HOVER MERCURY CLASSI C

SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) SEATON

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

04/ 02/ 03 0738 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 02/ 03 0738 (H L&C, FIN

04/ 25/ 03 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE Apri |

25, 2003



BILL: HB 242
SHORT TI TLE: EXAM FOR CPA' S
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) HAWKER

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

04/ 04/ 03 0769 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 04/ 03 0769 (H L&C, FIN

04/ 25/ 03 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 199
SHORT TI TLE: DELETE M NI MUM WAGE | NFLATI ON - PROOFI NG
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

03/19/03 0585 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/19/03 0585 (H L&C, FIN

04/ 25/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 56

SHORT TI TLE: UNFAI R TRADE PRACTI CES ATTY FEES/ COSTS
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) GARA

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 21/ 03 0046 (H PREFI LE RELEASED (1/17/03)

01/ 21/ 03 0046 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 03 0046 (H L&C, JUD

02/ 21/ 03 (H M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 25/ 03 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor of HB 232, presented the bill
and answered questions.

LAUREN RADCLI FFE, Staff

to Representative Paul Seaton

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 232.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- April 25, 2003



JANE TOLLEFSRUD, Assistant Director

Honer Boys and Grls d ub;

Coor di nat or

Homer Mercury C assic

Homer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 232.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVWKER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 242.

STEVEN R TAROLA, CPA, Chairnman

Al aska State Board of Public Accountancy

Homer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 242.

DAN F. KENNEDY, CPA, MBA, Menber

Al aska State Board of Public Accountancy

Kennedy and Conpany

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 242.

BEN BROWN, Legi sl ative Assistant

Al aska St ate Chanber of Conmerce

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Spoke in support of HB 199, citing the
chanber's two positions on state fiscal health and health
i nsur ance.

MATTHEW SAMPSON
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 199.

DON ROBERTS

Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Spoke against HB 199 but proposed an
alternative of enployee profit-sharing for a |owered m ninmm
wage.

Bl LL BUBBEL, Oper ator

Punp House Rest aur ant

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 199.

FRANK RCSE, Presi dent

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- April 25, 2003



Al aska Hotel and Lodgi ng Associ ati on;

Owner, Al aska Lodgi ng Managenent

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified in support of HB 199, noting that
he is increasing menu prices to cover the increased m ninmum
wages.

JON FAULKNER, Owner/ oper at or

Land's End Resort

Honmer, Al aska;

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported HB 199, saying an annual increase
in the mnimum wage is inflationary and hurts |abor-intensive
restaurants.

JOSE RAMOS, Oper at or

Don Jose Restaurants

Homer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported HB 199.

JI M SAMPSON, Executive President

Al aska State AFL-C O

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 199, warning
that if the legislature renoves the CPI from the existing bill
there may be another petition drive.

CH P WAGONER, Lobbyi st

for Al aska Catholic Conference

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: OQpposed HB 199, citing state econom sts in
Washi ngt on and Oregon where the m ni rum wage has been indexed.

JAY SUTHERLAND
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 199.

JACK AMON
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in favor of HB 199.

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as the sponsor of HB 56.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- April 25, 2003



TAPE 03-40, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:30 p.m Represent ati ves
Ander son, Lynn, Dahl strom Gatt o, Rokeber g, Crawford, and
Quttenberg were present at the call to order.

HB 111- RCA EXTENSI ON TELECOVMUNI CATI ON PCLI Cl ES

Number 0083

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 111, "An Act extending the term nation date of
the Regulatory Conm ssion of Alaska; and providing for an
effective date.”

CHAI R ANDERSON cl osed public testinony, noting the considerable
presentations by the public in the l|ast nonth-and-a-half. He
noted that Version | was adopted at a previous neeting and is
now before the commttee.

Nunber 0112

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to adopt Anendnent 1. On page 4,
line 10, after (k), delete "An electric or" and insert "A".

Number 0142

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG obj ected for purposes of discussion.
He asked about the inpact of Anendnent 1.

CHAI R ANDERSON noted that the bill drafter [from Legislative
Legal and Research Services] was not present. Chair Anderson
said that |anguage on page 4, line 10, subsection (k), deals
with [determining] depreciation [rates] for telephone facilities
[and equi pnment]. [Several telephone conpanies] testified on the
disparity in [treatnment by the Regulatory Comm ssion of Al aska].
He said the CS focused on tel ephony issues.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that [subsection (k)] also
i ncluded electric conpanies. The subcommttee did not want to
deal with [the electric industry] in the CS, but that issue can
be revisited at a l|ater date. He said he did not think ARECA
[ Alaska Rural Electric Cooperative Association] or the other
el ectric conpani es supported that inclusion.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- April 25, 2003



Nunmber 0202
REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG wi t hdrew hi s obj ecti on.

CHAIR ANDERSON said that hearing no [further] objection
Amendnent 1 i s adopted.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said he prepared an anmendnment but is
not going to offer it at this tine.

Number 0252

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to report the proposed CS for HB
111, [23-GH1079\1, Craver, 4/23/03, Version 1], as anended, out
of committee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD obj ect ed. He said he is opposed to
noving the bill with extraneous issues, and therefore preferred
noving a clean bill that was a sinple extension [of the RCA].
He preferred considering these other issues in separate bills.

Number 0343

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM stated for the record that she is
supporting the CS in the interest of noving the bill forward
She said that commttee menbers who have additional concerns can
work with the next coommttee [of referral].

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG expl ai ned that the anendnent he didn't
advance is sustentative, and it deserves a hearing so people can
understand its intent. He said he will forward the anendnent to
finance comrittee nenbers and participate in the discussion
t here. The anendnent provides for the option of a hearing
judge, a single admnistrative l|aw judge, or a panel of
adm nistrative law judges in certain electrical cooperative
tariff cases.

CHAI R ANDERSON noted his agreenent with the concept of this
anendnent and the [opportunity] for further discussion.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said this subconmttee and conmmittee

has done a lot of work on this bill; the deliberations reflected
a huge learning curve [for menbers]. These sustentative issues
deserve a hearing, which wll occur in the House Finance
Commi ttee.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- April 25, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said that due to the situation, he is
renovi ng his objection.

Nunber 0486
CHAI R ANDERSQN, hearing no other objections, stated that CSHB
111(L&C) passed out of the House Labor and Comrerce Standing

Commi ttee.

HB 232- HOVER MERCURY CLASSIC GAM NG PRIZE LIMT

Nunber 0527

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 232, "An Act relating to nercury classics; and
providing for an effective date."

Nunmber 0556

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor
of HB 232, explained that it establishes the Honmer Mercury

Classic, which will be operated and adm nistered by the [Honer
chapter of the] Boys and Grls Cubs of the Kenai Peninsula
("Boys and Grls Cub.") The bill is titled Homer because

that's where [the thernoneter readings] will be taken. The 300
menbers of the Boys and Grls Cub have |ooked at a nunber of
fundrai sers; they have established a history of working wth
sophi sticated weather equipnment that had been certified and
woul d be on the top of their building. This would be simlar to
the Nenana Ice O assic, he explained. Tickets will be sold for
$2. The winner in the fall [would guess] the date and tine when
the tenperature first drops to 15 degrees, and [simlarly] in
the spring, [the wnner would guess] when the tenperature
reaches 55 degrees. The [club nenbers] are working with G.OBE
[ obal Learning and Cbservation to Benefit the Environnment], a
nati onwi de educational program of weather-related information,
whi ch i ncl udes NASA [ Nat i onal Aer onauti cs and Space
Adm ni stration] and a nunber of other organizations.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked if the tenperatures are on the
Fahrenheit or Cel sius scal es.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied Fahrenheit.

Nunmber 0658

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- April 25, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked Representative Seaton if he has
been in contact with the Fairbanks Chanber of Comerce about
whet her this gane encroaches on its [nercury] classic.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied that the Fairbanks [Chanber of
Comrerce has a nmercury] hasn't operated for years.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that Fairbanks has an exclusive
right in statute to the classic. Therefore, whether the Honer
Mercury Classic would encroach on the Fairbanks Mercury classic
woul d be inportant information to have before the bill gets to
the [House] floor. He asked about the effective date of January
1, 2004.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied that the Boys and Grls Cdub was
not ready to operate [the classic] this fall, so next spring
would be the first occasion [to guess when the tenperature]
reaches 55 degrees.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG commented that either tenperature is
possi bl e between the spring and the fall. He noted that he was
al so wondering about Representative Seaton's dialogue with the
Fai r banks Chanber of Comrerce.

Number 0840

LAUREN RADCLI FFE, Staff to Representative Paul Seaton, Al aska
State Legislature, explained that Jane Tollefsrud, who is
prepared to testify, has spoken to the Fairbanks Chanber of
Commerce who can currently operate this nercury classic. She
related her wunderstanding that the chanber does not currently
operate it and never has.

JANE TOLLEFSRUD, Assistant Director, Homer Boys and Grls d ub;
Coordi nator, Homer Mercury Cassic, said she tried to pursue the
Fai rbanks aspect of this, but none of the enployees of the
Fai r banks Chanmber of Commerce with whom she spoke had ever heard
of it. She added that the Homer Mercury C assic revolves around
the first time the tenperature falls to 15 degrees in the fall
and the first tinme the tenperature reaches 55 degrees in the

spri ng.
Nunber 0924

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM inquired as to how much revenue the
classic will generate.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- April 25, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he had no idea because it wll depend

on how many tickets the 300 nenbers will sell at $2 a piece
[ The Boys and Grls Cdub] wll receive half of the noney
col | ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how fall with be defined, explaining
t hat he was concerned about doubl e payouts.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that the tenperature is nonitored
every hour, continuously. Although he said he wasn't sure when
the period starts for neasuring, he said he offered to pass this
point on for inclusion in the regulations so it's clear that
it's the first tinme the tenperature reaches the specified
tenperature

Nunmber 1018

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said that regardless of who [held the
exclusive right to a nercury classic], there is no letter of
understanding or agreenent wth the current [authorized group],
this proposed mercury classic is placed in a different position.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON poi nted out that the Homer Mercury O assic
is identified by nanme specifically in the bill

M5. TOLLEFSRUD said her organization would be nore specific on
dates about the first tinme [the tenperature rose to 55 degrees]
after June 1 or before June 1. Data is collected hourly via
conputer, so that [tinme and date] can't be altered.

CHAI R ANDERSQN, upon determ ning no one else wished to testify,
cl osed public testinony.

Nunber 1117

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to report HB 232 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 232 was reported out of the
House Labor and Conmmerce Standing Committee.

HB 242- EXAM FOR CPA' S

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 242, "An Act relating to licensing of
certified public accountants.”

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- April 25, 2003



Nunber 1150

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of
HB 242, noted that he'd once been a certified public accountant
(CPA) . He explained that the bill was brought forward at the
request of the Alaska Society of Certified Public Accountants
(ASCPA) as well as the Dvision of Cccupational Licensing.

Relating to testing for CPAs, the bill is necessary because of
changes made by the Anerican Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (Al CPA), which has admnistered a nationw de
standardi zed test for CPAs since the early 1960s. This uniform
exam nation has been adopted by all jurisdictions in the US

The AICPA has changed the format, however, and now wll
adm nister the exam via conputer using a keyboard; it wll be
given four tines a year, whereas the old paper-and-pencil exans
were given twice a year. In addition, there are sone other

changes that he characterized as "a technical issue.”

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER told nenbers that Alaska's statute was
witten in the early 1960s and says there shall be a witten
exam nati on. Thus the Division of GQOccupational Licensing was
concerned that it inplied a paper-and-pencil exam nation and
that a conputerized exam nation wouldn't qualify. Therefore, on
page 1, l|line 4, the bill deletes the requirenent that the
exam nation be witten. Furthernore, on page 1, lines 7-11, the
bill [specifies that the board shall use] "the Uniform Certified
Public Accountant Exam nation of the Anerican Institute of
Certified Public Accountants”™ and "the institute's advisory
grading service, if available."”

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER explained that Alaska's statute also
codifies the frequency of the exam the reexam nation
procedures, and the standards for passing the exam nation; this
is to mrror criteria established by the Al CPA The ASCPA and
the D vision of QGccupational Licensing have requested that those
criteria be put into regulation instead; furthernore, those are
inconsistent with the new conputerized system Thus the bill
del etes them from statute, with the proviso that the D vision of
Qccupational Licensing work with the [Al aska State Board of
Public Accountancy] to put those provisions into regulation.
There also is a transitional period [in Section 4]; that was
taken from |anguage suggested by the AICPA to explain and
provide for a transition from the current tw ce-a-year testing
to t he four-times-a-year testing, whi ch has di fferent
requi renents for passing the test.

Nunmber 1418

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- April 25, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN inquired about the standard for "good nora
character” on page 2, line 16.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER recalled that when he applied for a
license in Alaska he had to sign an affidavit that allowed a
background exam nation and had to conplete "a one-inch-thick
course and about a half-inch-thick exam nation in professional
ethics.™

Nunmber 1448

CHAI R ANDERSON suggested it is simlar to the ethics exam nation
required as of 1998 of a person who has conpleted |aw school
whi ch nust be passed in addition to the bar exam

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN said it is simlar in real estate, but
guesti oned whether ethics can be taught. "You either have it or
you don't have it," he remarked.

Nunber 1464

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG surm sed that the AICPA has its own
grading service avail able. He asked whether the |anguage "if
avai l abl e" is necessary on page 1, line 11.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER answered that the Uniform Certified Public
Account ant Exami nation [specified in the bill] is a term that
describes the exam nation given by the AICPA, it isn't a change
[except that the words aren't capitalized in the statute]. He
explained that the exans are taken and adm nistered nationw de
by the local accounting organi zations, but grading is consistent
and centralized in one location in the country. Indicating he'd
di scussed the wording "if available®™ wth the D vision of
Qccupational Licensing, he said:

The sense was that we'd have a statute here that woul d

give a wpriority to require that institute's
exam nation. |If sonmething highly unusual happened and
that institute ceased to function, we would still be

in the position of being able to continue the
| icensing process for prospective accountants wth
whatever ... nationalized examnation process my
[ becone] avail abl e.

Nunber 1546

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- April 25, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, calling it a mnor detail, said there is a
difference, to him between a passing score and a passing grade.
For exanple, there can be grades of AL B, C, D, and F, with C as
a passing grade; however, it can be nore specific. He asked
whether, the intention is to have a passing score rather than a
passi ng grade.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER answered that [the bill] uses the |anguage
and semantics that are "customary and normal in the certified
public accounting world."

Nunmber 1583

STEVEN R TAROLA, CPA, Chairman, Alaska State Board of Public
Accountancy, testified on behalf of the board in full support of
HB 242. He reported that the board's mssion is to protect the
public interest by ensuring that only qualified persons are
licensed and that appropriate standards of conpetency and
practice are est abl i shed and enf or ced. Primary i's
adm nistration of the uniform CPA exam which a person nust pass
in order to obtain a license to practice as a CPA There is
only one exam avail able, which is the four-part exam prepared by
the AICPA and used in all 50 states as well as the District of
Col unmbi a, Guam Puerto Rico, and the U S. Virgin Islands.

MR. TAROLA agreed that the current paper-and-pencil exam is
being discontinued and replaced by a conputerized version,
noting that the "roll-out date"” is no later than May 2004. He
also agreed that the bill's purpose is to anmend Al aska's
statutes to accommopdate the conputerized exam He added that it
provides transitioning to grandfather in candidates who have
successfully passed a portion of the paper-and-pencil exam when
HB 242 becones |aw. He said the new conputerized exam is
avai lable "nunmerous tinmes a year" and agreed that w thout HB
242, the board would have no legal neans to adm nister the new
conputeri zed version. He urged support of the bill

Number 1652

DAN F. KENNEDY, CPA, MBA, Menber, Al aska State Board of Public
Account ancy, thanked l|egislators - Representative Hawker, in
particular - for supporting the CPA profession on this inportant
change. He requested that the commttee support the bill

CHAI R ANDERSON asked whet her anyone el se wished to testify. He
then cl osed public testinony.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- April 25, 2003



Nunber 1706

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG  began di scussi on of Concept ua
Amendnent 1. He referred to the transitional provisions in
Section 4, noting that on [page 2, lines 26-28] there is a
formula, [the second part of which] relates to "the nunber of
opportunities the applicant had remaining on the day before the
effective date of this Act multiplied by six nonths". An
additional provision on lines 30-31 talks about the effective
date. He asked why there is no effective date for the bill

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER answered that this needs to be in effect
by the end of the first quarter of 2004. He offered his belief
that the automatic passage of this bill into law would allow
adequate tine.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed out that the effective date
woul d be uncertain because of the tine it takes a bill to be
engrossed, transmtted to the governor, and then taken up by the
governor. It could be August 17 or August 28, for exanple,
which would make the calculations for dates conplicated. He
noted that if there is no effective date, it beconmes effective
90 days after signature [by the governor]. He suggested it
woul d be preferable to have a date that begins on the first of
sonme nont h.

REPRESENTATIVE HAWKER indicated legislative drafters had
informed himthat it was unnecessary, but he said Representative

Rokeberg had made a clear and convincing argunent. Agr eei ng
wi th anmendment of the bill, he reconmmended January 1, 2004.
Number 1809

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnent 1,
to add a new Section 5 such that this Act shall take effect on
January 1, 2004.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER asked whet her t hat i ncl udes a
corresponding title anendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG agreed that is a good idea.

CHAIR ANDERSON asked whether there was any objection to
Conceptual Anmendnent 1, to adopt a new Section 5 that provides
an effective date of January 1, 2004, with a corresponding title
change. There being no objection, Conceptual Anmendnent 1 was
adopt ed.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- April 25, 2003



Nunmber 1856

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noved to report HB 242, as anended, out
of commttee wth i ndi vi dual recomrendat i ons and t he
acconpanying zero fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHB
242(L&C) was reported fromthe House Labor and Commrerce Standing
Commi ttee.

HB 199- DELETE M NI MUM WAGE | NFLATI ON- PROOFI NG

Nunber 1871

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 199, "An Act renoving the annual adjustnent to
the m ni num wage based on the rate of inflation; and providing
for an effective date.”

Number 1909

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG testified as chairman of the House Rules
Commttee, which is the sponsor of HB 199. He explained that HB
199 was introduced at the request of a nunber of smal
busi nesses. He noted that conmittee nenbers' bill packets
contain letters of support from many businesses, ranging from
the Al aska State Chanber of Commerce to the National Federation
of I ndependent Business, Al aska Chapter. He said there are
probably two dozen people and businesses who support HB 199.
This bill is a response to HB 56, passed by the legislature in
2002. At that time, Alaska's prevailing wage was $5.65; the
bill established a new base m nimum wage of $7.15 an hour, an
i ncrease of $1.50 or 27 percent. In addition, the bill created
a formula that required that the mninmum wage be adjusted every
January, wusing either the Consuner Price Index for Anchorage
prepared by the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics or $1
nore than the federal m ninmum wage, whichever is greater

Number 2020

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG observed that every January, this |aw
i npacts businesses, particularly snall busi nesses, with a
unilateral |egislatively-enacted wage increase. He said he
finds that very problematic, particularly given the current
economc conditions in the state. The legislature has

[transforned] this disquieting and controversial issue into a
formula so it doesn't have to revisit it again. Representati ve
Rokeberg said he thinks that's a m stake. It is the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- April 25, 2003



| egi sl ature's responsibility to make certain that the m ninmm
wage level is correctly balanced with the econom c picture of
the state. He reiterated that in passing that |law |ast year,
the legislature abrogated its responsibility.

Nunber 2052

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG reviewed the rationale for increasing
the mnimum wage: to raise the wages of |ower incone people and
reduce poverty. I ndexing [an annual increase] is supposed to
allow the workers to keep up with inflation, give certainty to
enpl oyers, and take this divisive issue off the legislative
cal endar. However, sound econom c anal ysis argues agai nst those
conclusions, he stated. Although this is an enotional issue, he
said there is significant academ c study on both sides of it.
He explained that HB 199 nerely repeals the index; it does not
repeal the m ni nrum wage.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that the mninmum wage does not
help the poor; it actually hurts |lower inconme people nore than
it hel ps them because any econom c theory that pushes the cost
of labor up has a tendency to decrease the nunber of jobs.

That's an axiom of economcs, he said. When | abor costs
i ncrease, enployers react in several ways. In such a situation

enpl oyers typically hire fewer workers; lay off workers; and
work people longer hours rather than hire new people. The

econom c analysis and studies show this to be the case, he
conment ed.

Number 2139

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG di scussed the groups that are targeted
for help by the m nimum wage, such as the working single parent
with children. However, only 14 percent of the people receiving
m ni mum wage fit that category. Anot her small group is single
or married people with no dependents many [of whom are younger
peopl e working entry |evel |obs. Representati ve Rokeberg said
that the only thing certain about the formula now in place is
that for a small businessperson, the cost of doing business wll
ri se every January.

Nunber 2201
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG antici pated opposition from organized
| abor on HB 199. He praised the collective bargai ning process,

poi nting out how |abor and enployers sit dowmn at a table and
negoti at e. He said he thinks that's one of the country's

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- April 25, 2003



strengths, that the Iabor force is represented in many

occupations in the job narket. However, when HB 56 was passed
| ast year, enployers were not "represented at the bargaining
table" with the |egislature. This was not a fair deal for

enpl oyers, he said. The legislature acted in |large part because
of political pressure over an initiative pronoted by organized
| abor. He noted that organized |abor does not bargain for
m ni num wages.

Nunber 2285

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed to the various Kkinds of
financial difficulties that businesses can experience: a
downturn in a whole industry, such as in tourism after the
terrorist attack of Septenmber 11, 2001; a bad business cycle; or
ot her problens external to the business. He said that any of
these factors could be happening, but every January 1, a
busi ness nust increase wages [because of the indexing provision
in state law. He said he doesn't think that is fair; these
busi ness people are asking for sone relief because when the
| egislature unilaterally forces a business decision on
enpl oyers, the business person has to nake a choice about
enpl oynent practices that end up hurting that entry |[evel
per son. Those are the types of real world decisions that
happen, he cauti oned.

TAPE 03-40, SIDE B
Number 2351

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG cited the exanple of the Red Robin
franchise in Anchorage. In his March 17, 2003 letter, [the
conpany president] stated that because of the mninmm wage
i ncrease | ast year, he shut down the md-town restaurant, a |oss
of 54 jobs in Anchorage. He said this is a solid exanple of one
establishnment that's already shut down as a direct result of
| egi sl ative action. He referred commttee nenbers to studies
about the State of Washi ngton and ot her econom ¢ situations.

CHAIR ANDERSON referenced the National Conference of State
Legi slatures (NCSL), which stated that only two states have a
CPl connected to its mninmm wage. He posed a hypotheti cal
guestion in which the mninmm wage is $7.15. An enpl oyer wth
100 enpl oyees who work 40-hour work week would, due to the
automatic CPl, force an increase of $400 a week which ambunts to
$19, 200 a year. He asked if that's the concept: an automatic
i ncrease, not based on the nerit of the enpl oyee.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- April 25, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG agreed to this exanple. He added that
on top of the $19,200 amount, the enployer pays another 14.1
percent for payroll taxes.

Number 2204

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD commented that Representative Rokeberg's
[argument] nakes the case for organized | abor. He said the
m ni rum wage was raised so nuch because it had been so |ong
[since the last increase], and the cost of |iving had gone up so

much. Had the cost of living escalator been [included] in a
m ni rum wage [fornula], the mninmm wage woul d have ended up at
about the same anmount, but it would have been a small, gradual
increase for the business operators each year, instead of a
massi ve 27 percent increase all at once. This is the business
friendly part of [existing law] -- small, graduated increases

that can be absorbed over tine. He said he would Iike to have
this fight every five years because it draws a |lot of votes [to
organi zed | abor candidates], but its better for business and
better for the mninum wage workers to have gradual wage
i ncreases.

CHAIR ANDERSON asked about the fairness of wage increases
regardl ess of the enployee's aptitude or ability.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD recalled that he was hired before the

m ni num wage covered food service in 1976. He started at 90
cents an hour and wasn't covered for overtime hours. He
recalled once working 112 hours in a week. He said he knows
that conmpanies will wuse an enployee as much as the enployee
al | ows. However, mninmum wage and overtine laws curb those
abuses.

Nunmber 2056

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG stated that the mninmum wage 1is
supposedly the bottom Iine. All of these enployers [who
submtted letters of support for HB 199] are service enployers;
they earn their living on the product their enployees deliver,
he said. |If they don't respect their enployees, if they want to

drive these wages down, that's reflected in the workplace.
These m ni mum wage workers, washing dishes or flipping burgers,
understand the respect [from their enployers] in the workpl ace;
it goes way beyond what the legislature is doing here [with a
cost-of-living index]. He stated that he has worked for hourly
wages his whole life. He said a contractor that respects the
enpl oyees produces a significantly higher quality product.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- April 25, 2003



Nunmber 1983

BEN BROWN, Legislative Assistant, Alaska State Chanber of
Commerce, said that the state chanber is pro-labor and pro-

busi ness. Its menbership includes 700 small, nedium and | arge
busi nesses and 35 |ocal chanbers of comrerce. It represents a
| arge portion of Al aska businesses w th enpl oyees. The chanber
menbers this year developed a |ist of six legislative

priorities, and he addressed two of them securing Al aska's
fiscal future and affordable health insurance.

MVR. BROAN voiced support for Representative Rokeberg's

i ntroductory statenents. An automatic index built into the
statute takes away sone of the deliberative decision-nmaking
power and responsibilities of the legislature, he said. [ The

recent wage increase] was generous; it obviously has benefited
sone people but has had a detrinental affect on other people
He cited the closure of the [Anchorage] md-town Red Robin and
how his friend, a nanager, lost his job. The legislature wants
to nmake sure that whatever the statutory policy, it benefits the
i ntended beneficiaries. That requires the legislature to
eval uate the economc conditions of the state on a regular basis
and determ ne whether another increase in the mninum wage is

merited. He added that Alaska is not necessarily on the sane
econom ¢ wave length as the rest of the country, particularly in
regard to the price of oil. [Setting the Al aska m ni num wage] a

dollar nore than the federal [mnimum wage] or wusing the
Anchorage CPlI (consuner price index) mght loop in economc
conditions that are inappropriate. He advocated that regular
| egi sl ative review all ows for a healthy and vi gorous debate.

nunmber 1820

MR. BROWN addressed the chanber's support for health insurance.
He said that when a business is forced by law to increase the
rate of hourly conpensation for its enployees, if it is offering
any sort of health package, there's |less noney available to
provi de those heal th benefits.

Number 1773

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD noted that he has sponsored [HB 7],
allowi ng enployers to reduce wages by $2 an hour if businesses
woul d provide adequate health care. He said the chanber has not
supported his bill. [ The | aw passed |ast year] increased [the
mni mum wage] by $1.50, but his bill proposes a $2 an hour

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- April 25, 2003



benefit [to enpl oyers]. Not once did he hear from the chanber
he said, so he questioned the nerit of M. Brown's argunent

regardi ng health insurance. Representative Crawford questioned
whet her four nonths of the increased m ni num wage caused the Red
Robin [restaurant] to close. He asked if the Red Robin was

profitable before the increased m ni num wage, or was it already
in jeopardy. He said that this law has only been in affect for
four nonths, so he didn't see how people could say with any
certainty that it is putting people out of work. In the past,
when the m ninum wage has increased, the Departnment of Labor &
Wor kf orce Devel opnent hasn't been able to show any resulting
| oss of | obs.

MR. BROMWN said he will take Representative Crawford's bill under
advi senent because health care is part of the larger debate

her e. If a business is in a precarious situation, then
[increasing the mninmum wage] is the straw that breaks the
canel's back. He advised against unnecessary burdens on a

busi ness that's al ready precarious.
Nunmber 1649

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if it's the chanber's position
that a business in trouble should have the mninmm wage
adj ust ed.

MR. BROWN said that the chanber's position is that state |aw
should not place businesses in a position that nakes it
unreasonably difficult for them to survive and continue
provi di ng j obs. He explained that the chanber doesn't advocate
| egi sl ation that addresses each business's wage conditions; it
advocates legislation that is fair and allows the entire
busi ness conmmunity to prosper.

Nunber 1602

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG noted that a business's plan is based
on economc stability. He proposed that having a m ni nrum wage
| aid out in advance is a benefit for a business.

MR. BROWN responded that there two kinds of certainty: t he
certainty that [wages are] going to stay the sane till there's a
reasonabl e debate that raises them or the certainty that [wages
will] go up wthout that debate. He admitted that both are
better than total uncertainty. But the superior option for the
busi nessman is not having an automatic wage increase when the
econom ¢ conditions do not warrant it.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- April 25, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if a ballot initiative [raising
the mnimum wage] is a much worse alternative than [current |aw
whi ch has an indexed wage increase]. Valid initiatives create a
| ess certain future for businesses.

Nunber 1552

MR. BROM said because the mninmum wage in currently generous,
he doesn't think a ballot initiative is likely.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said he's never heard a m ninum wage
consi dered generous.

Number 1530
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that the mninmum wage is generous in

conparison to the wages paid in other countries' sweat shops
that produce athletic shoes and sports equi pnment, sonetines with

child |abor. He said that legislators have the power to bring
back the m nimum wage any tine and deal with it; there are also
these automatic increases [due to the CPI]. He suggested, maybe

the legislature should ignore [increasing] the mninum wage
benefit and have the CPlI tied to some mninum wage one tine

[only].

MATTHEW SAMPSON di sagreed with Representative Rokeberg's conmment
that wunionized |abor does not represent mninum wage earners
because it never bargains for mninmm wages and pointed to HB

255 in which union [advocates opposed training wages]. He said
the union does represent the little people, not directly, but
there's the trickle down affect. He agreed with Representative

Rokeberg's statenent that if small business can't afford to pay
m ni rum wage, then they're going to have nore |layoffs, they're
going to hire |less people and pay them nore. He referenced the
packet of letters from Alyeska Prince Hotel, Denali Park Resort,
Land's End Resort, Alyeska Resort, and Subway, all businesses
that are having a hard tine with the [increased] m ninmum wage.
[ The increase] was $1.50 an hour and [businesses] are feeling it
in their pocketbooks because it had been a long tine since there
was an appropriate raise [in the mninum wage]. He said it is
only logical that [businesses] are not Iliking that. | f
| egi sl ators had been [increasing the m ninmum wage] year in and
year out, [the issue of] inflation-proofing the mninmm wage
woul d not be a big deal.

Number 1261

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- April 25, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Sanpson if given a choice, would
he prefer going for mninmm wage increases every few years or
[yearly increases under] the CPI

MR. SAMPSON asked why shouldn't his rate of pay be inflation-
pr oof ed. He said it has no bearing on the $1.50 pay raise; he
deserves bot h.

Nunber 1169

DON ROBERTS testified against HB 199, which elimnates the
annual adjustnment to the m ninum wage. He cited the Al aska
State Constitution and stated that the bill does not neet the
requirenent that it express the will of the people or is good
for the people as a whole. He stated that it wll benefit
rat her "well-heal ed" canpaign contributors and |obbyists and
"their corporate coffers.™ He urged the conmttee not to pass
HB 199. He proposed giving business owners and enployees an

alternative where the enployees shared in the profits of the
business if they agreed to work at a | ower m ni nrum wage.

Nunmber 1036

Bl LL BUBBEL, Operator, Punp House Restaurant, testified that the
only people in Alaska who make a mninmum wage are the food
service or hospitality people, and those individuals augnent
their wages with tips. In his restaurant, the only m ni nrum wage
enpl oyees are servers; the dishwashers are paid $8.50 an hour
McDonal ds [ Restaurant] doesn't hire anybody at the m ni mum wage.
He opposed [applying] the CPI to the mninmm wage because it
really doesn't reflect the state of the econony. He said that
nost of the mninmum wage earners work in tourism which is
substantially down. He said this affects a business person's
ability to absorb any additional wage increases. He recommended
| eaving the mnimum wage at the federal |evel plus $1.50, while
removing the CPI fromit. Any increase is inflationary because
the cost will have to be absorbed by the public. He questioned
how much nore the public is willing to pay for a neal at the
Punp House. Hi s business has just absorbed the m ninum wage
increase and a huge increase in insurance and [workers']
conpensati on rates. He rem nded conmttee nenbers that every
rise in the mnimm wage has an exponential affect on other
expenses, increasing costs and squeezing profits even further.
Margins in the food business are probably sonme of the smallest
in the nation, he said.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- April 25, 2003



Number 0975

MR. BUBBEL said that the mninum wage doesn't apply to Al aska
because no one will work for it. He encouraged the commttee to
create a tip credit as a way of hel ping the enployer, increasing
enpl oynent, and bringing in nore young people. He said as an
enpl oyer's costs increase, fewer people wll be hired. He
encouraged the conmittee to nmake it easier for an enployer to
hire lots of staff, provide lots of jobs for young people
entering the job market. He said that he doesn't currently use
the training wage at the Punp House but if wages go up, he'l
have to use it to conpensate for these rising costs.

Nunmber 0873

FRANK ROSE, President, Alaska Hotel and Lodging Association;
Owmner, Al aska Lodgi ng Managenent, testified in favor of HB 199.
The past two years, the industry has been devastated by the
decline in visitors to our state. In his case, that's a 20
percent [decline in occupancy]. He expl ained that occupancy is
about 70 percent, and in order to make a profit, the occupancy
rate should be around 80 percent when the business is open four
nont hs of the year. It's a severe situation, he said. \Wether
it's the result of the underlying economy or the [the terrorist
attacks of Septenmber 11, 2001], business is suffering; in
contrast to the comments of an earlier wtness, he said, things
are not that rosy in the Denali [Bluffs Hotel]. To further
exacerbate things, his insurance rates have gone up 40 percent.
That's a big nunber given the $100,000 he pays for insurance a
year. He pointed out that Al aska has the highest m ni num wage
in the nation.

MR, ROSE said that to not pass HB 199 would be another road
bl ock to his business. I ncreasing the mni mum wage through the
CPl, is, at least in the tourism industry, focused largely on
ti pped enpl oyees, and they're sone of the nost hi ghly
conpensated in his business. The average pay |ast year before
t he m ni rum wage was increased, was between $19 and $20 an hour.
Some 80 to 90 percent of the other positions in his operations
are not affected by the increase in the mninmm wage. In his
seasonal restaurants this comng year, he has had to raise his
menu prices by 8 percent and has cut his staff by 5 percent.
Then the whole [success of his business] still depends on
whet her visitors are comng to Al aska. He urged the conmittee
to pass HB 199.

Number 0732

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- April 25, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Rose about his 8 percent nenu
increases and 5 percent staff cut, whether he attributed those
to general business conditions or to the increase in the m ninum
wage.

MR. RCSE replied that the restaurant enployees are m ni num wage

earners, even though they're making about $20 an hour. [ The
increase in those wages] is the area [of the budget] that has
been nost severely [inpacted]. He said the increase in nenu

prices is directly related to the m ni num wage i ncrease.
Nunmber 0663

JON FAULKNER, Owmner/operator, Land's End Resort, referred to the
letter he faxed to the commttee nenbers. The resort has a
si zabl e restaurant, he said. He testified in support of HB 199.
He said he believes that mninmum wage is a legislative
prerogative and needs to remain so. Restaurants in particular
are inpacted by [changes in the m ninmum wage]; restaurants are a
maj or part of the econony and a major enployer of the entry

| evel people that mninmum wage is designed to help. The
| egi slature needs the input of restaurant operators when it
del i berates m nimum wage increases such as this. There's new
information that cones up annually: the econom c conditions
after[the terrorist attacks of Septenber 11, 2001] sharp
increases in insurance, fuel and utility costs. He said the
| egi sl ature does not know who exactly is affected by mninum
wage. Al t hough many restaurant servers are paid mninmm wage
they earn, on average, well above twice the mninmm wage. This
i nformation, whi ch  changes, certainly should affect t he
| egi slature's deliberations, and that information changes. To
make [the CPI increase] automatic defies the rationale for

having a | egislature, he remarked.

MR. FAULKNER stated [an annual increase in the mninmum wage] is
absolutely inflationary. The wages at Land's End constitute 30-
40 percent of its annual budget, and therefore the product
[price] will certainly go up. He said, "Is this what we want?
| don't think so." He said that raising the mninmm wage
absol utely reduces | obs. Restaurants operate on a fixed |abor
budget otherwi se they go broke. Furthernore, restaurants are
| abor intensive and operate on very thin margins. This is not
an issue of loyalty to his enployees, M. Faul kner said. There
are many ways that he rewards his enployees that are nore
inportant to them than m ni num wage. He did not agree with an
earlier conmment that the [certainty of an annual] CPl increase

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- April 25, 2003



gives enployers stability [for planning]. The stability of an
automatic increase is not as inportant to restaurant operators
as keeping | abor [costs] under control.

CHAI R ANDERSON commented on the fact that many businesses are
saying that many of their enployees [paid at higher than m ni num

wage] won't be affected [by the CPI increase]. He said these
conpanies are still testifying on behalf of business.
Nunber 0417

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the point is that these restaurant
wor kers, because they nmake tip inconme, earn twice the m ninum
wage. They're making $15, $20, $25 an hour, and the |egislature
gave thema raise they didn't need.

Number 0348

JOSE RAMOS, Qperator, Don Jose Restaurants, said he operates
three restaurants on the Kenai Peninsula and Anchorage. He
enpl oyees 60-70 enployees year round and 107 enployees in the
sunmmer . He said the increase in the mninmm wage had a really
big inpact in his restaurants. He said his enpl oyees were happy
to get the raise from $5.65 to $7.15, and he was happy for them
Annual increnments wll put a lot of businesses in a tough
situation. In fact, he said he wll probably hire fewer
enpl oyees and figure out how to adjust his cost of operations.
He concl uded by noting his support of HB 199.

Number 0235

JIM SAMPSON, Executive President, Alaska State AFL-CI O asked
that the |egislature not nove HB 199. He reviewed the history

associated with the bill. He recounted that several years ago,
the Al aska State AFL-CIO asked the legislature to |look at the
m ni nrum wage. For many vyears, his organization expected
Congress to adjust the m ninmum wage. In 1999 and 2000, Congress
considered a nunber of proposals; the Denocrats wanted to
[increase] it $1, and Republicans wanted a $.50 junp. As

happened in many other states in the country, the Al aska AFL-C O
asked the Al aska legislature to increase the mninum wage in two

steps of $.50 each. For two years, he and others asked the
| egi slature to address that issue, but it wouldn't vote on the
bills. Because the legislature failed to act, the public went
ahead and noved an initiative petition. He said he wote the
initiative petition and supervised the 50,000 signatures that
were coll ected. He agreed that the junp between the existing

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- April 25, 2003



state mnimm wage of $5.65 to $7.15 was a big one. Hi s
preference was a two-step increase.

Nunber 0116

MR, SAMPSON related that his group asked the l|legislature for a
vote up or down on the bills. They delivered the 50,000
signatures [to the Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor]. The
| egi slature held that bill wuntil the last week or so [of the
session]. And when [l egislative |eaders] were deciding whether
to vote on the bill or let the [initiative] go on the ballot,
they asked whether the initiative sponsor would be willing to
accept an [increased] mnimm wage without the CPI. He said his
group said no, let the people vote on the issue. They were also
asked if they would be willing as a sponsor half the CPI. They
said no, let the people vote on the issue. He said it was not
the sponsor's determnation as to whether if the bill had
passed, it was substantially simlar and would have precluded
the petition going to the ballot. He said that was the decision
of the attorney general and the I|ieutenant governor. He said
the legislature passed the bill ... [tape ends m d-statenent].

TAPE 03-41, SIDE A
Number 0010

MR. SAMPSON said he believes that the |egislature should | ook at
whether the CPlI is appropriate; it is the legislature's
responsibility to | ook at these issues. The problem he has with
HB 199 is the timng of the review |If the |egislature passes a
piece of legislation with the intention of making a substanti al
change in it six nonths later -- this frustrates the initiative
pr ocess. The legislature has precluded the public from voting
on [the issue]. He urged the legislature to let the [|aw passed
| ast year] work; it's too early to look at its econom c inpact.

Nunmber 0078

He continued and announced that the AFL-Cl O disagrees that the
[increased] m ninum wage or a subsequent CPlI indexing is going
to cause job | osses. He noted that Representative Rokeberg has
provi ded sonme [econonic] discussions in his paperwork; he said
he could provide simlar studies on the other side [of the
issue]. He recommended that the legislature let the [law] stand
for that two-year period, and then review it. If the
| egi sl ature does not, he predicted the public would present
another initiative wth nore than 50,000 signatures. He
predicted a public novenent across the state for nore of a

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 26- April 25, 2003



living wage instead of a m ninmum wage. He concl uded by asking
that the legislature not frustrate the [initiative] process, |et
the process work, and review it at the appropriate tine.

Number 0200

CHAI R ANDERSON noted that five of the seven nenbers of the
committee were not in the legislature [when this bill passed].
He confirmed that the increase in the m ninmum wage with the CPI
passed in the last |egislative session.

MR, SAMPSON reiterated that if the initiative would have gone to
a vote, it would have been in effect for two years. He noted
that the courts have not ruled on the question of whether
[ passing] a substantial change |ike HB 199 [underm nes the
initiative process]. He said he brings that up because [a court
chal l enge] is going to be an issue.

Nunmber 0287

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked about a person who nakes $8 an hour
and the CPlI [triggers an increase in the mninmm wage]. Woul d
this worker feel singled out because the increase didn't apply
to that job, he asked.

MR. SAMPSON responded that he did not know He said this is a
|l egitimate question and should have been -- and perhaps was --
di scussed | ast year. The | egislature could have passed a bill
without the CPlI increase, |ast year. He reiterated his point
that for the legislature to pass the [bill last year] with ful
intent to change it and thus deny the people the right to vote,
is a serious breach of public faith.

CHAI R ANDERSON noted that one legislature is not bound by the
actions of a previous legislature. He noted that 17 |egislators
are new this year and didn't vote on that bill

Number 0425

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he found M. Sanpson's | anguage
grossly wunconstitutional and offensive. He noted that M.
Sanpson is inplying that the |egislature does not have the right
to act wunder its constitutional purview, which it did. The
| egi sl ature adopted simlar |anguage, abrogating the need for
any initiative vote. He said he is offended that M. Sanpson is
inplying that even considering [HB 199] is objectionable. The
| egi slature has the constitutional right and the duty to [review

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -27- April 25, 2003



this l|egislation]. He al so asked about M. Sanpson's statenent
about a potential initiative for a living wage. He asked if
this is a threat.

Nunmber 0512
MR. SAMPSON replied that when he was told that the |egislature

m ght bring the issue back up again and substantially change it
this session, he talked with the assistant attorney general who

researched the case [l ast year]. She said she has not seen any
[case] law on this question of whether the |egislature can pass
a bill to avoid an initiative vote and then |ater change the
| aw. He said that if this bill passes, nmany people wll fee
they were denied the right to vote and be frustrated with this
initiative process. He said there could be a subsequent
initiative petition that will try to correct that or [raise the

bar] a little higher.
nunmber 0605

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said M. Sanpson's statenent is very
t ough. He asked again about his prediction of another
initiative on a |iving wage.

CHAI R ANDERSON sunmarized his wunderstanding of M. Sanpson's
statenent: The |egislature passed the m ni rum wage with the CP
six nonths ago; the CPI hasn't even clicked in yet so that those
who thought they were going to get it won't, and that those
peopl e are feeling disfranchised.

MR. SAMPSON said he's not here to get into an argunent. He said
he thinks that if the |egislature cones back and substantially
changes a piece of legislation that was passed for the purpose

of not allowing the people to vote, the legislature wll see a
reaction and another petition. He doesn't know what the
petition will say. He said he nmay or nmay not wite it.

Nunber 0832

CH P WAGONER, Lobbyist for Alaska Catholic Conference, announced
that the church supports the mninum wage and a |iving wage
which is a wage sufficient for a person to provide for their

famly wth dignity. Wth a mninmum wage, the state says
basically this is a just wage; anything below this wage is not
just. Once that figure is determ ned, automatic indexing makes

sense, otherwise inflation erodes the value of the m ninum wage
and it becomes unjust.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 28- April 25, 2003



Number 0925

MR. WAGONER wurged committee nenbers to beware of economc

materials that are very biased. He said one [biased group] is
the Enploynent Policies Institute, which is funded by sone of
the restaurant industry; another exanple is the Economc

Qpportunity Institute, which presents the [organized] | abor
side. He advised that the nobst accurate information is provided
by the states. According to the Al aska Departnent of Labor &
Wor kf orce Devel opnent, 14,000 people earn the mninmm wage in
Al aska; about one-third of these are restaurant workers. The
m ni nrum wage, even at $7.15 an hour, is still below the poverty
| evel for a famly of two.

MR. WAGONER testified that if the restaurant industry clains

that the mninum wage indexing is going to cost jobs, it's
useful to look at the effect of automatic indexing [on the
m nimum wage] in the two states that use it: Washi ngton and

Or egon. Washi ngton State adopted their initiative in 1998, and
in 1999, there were 174,800 jobs in the food services/drinking
pl aces industry, a national designation. In 2000, the nunber
rose to 202,200 jobs, a substantial increase, but in 2003, the
nunbers dropped to 173, 300. So Washi ngton has | ost about 1,500
j obs since adopting the indexing. But, he added, that loss in
jobs is not related to the mninmum wage, it has to do with The
Boeing Conpany crisis and the [depressed] Pacific Northwest
econony. Bob Wagner (ph), Mnager, Research and Analysis unit
for the [Oregon] Unenpl oynent Division, said, "There does not
appear to be a direct correlation between the indexed m ninmum
wage and the nunber of jobs in the food service/drinking places
i ndustry. " In other words, indexing does not affect the jobs.
In Oregon, [indexing] took affect this year. In Decenber of
2002, there were 106,700 jobs; in March 2003, there were
106, 800. Art Ayr (ph), State Enploynent Economi st for the State
of Oregon, said "Its probably inpossible to identify an increase
in the unenploynent rate and to tie it to the mninum wage, at
| east at the state level. At a local level, you nay be able to
identify specific enployers who have reduced enploynent due to a
variety of factors, including the mninmm wages." Conpani es
already on the ropes are one factor anong many, M. Wagoner
sai d.

MR, WAGONER said he talked to Dan Robinson, Alaska's state
econonm st, about the huge junp [in Alaska's mnimum wage], $1.50
from Decenber [2002] to January [2003]. The nunber of jobs in
the food service industry for that period dropped by 1,000, but

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -29- April 25, 2003



M. Wagoner quoted M. Robinson as saying that happens every
year, as the food service industry gears up for the holidays.
Now the number [of food service jobs] in Al aska has increased,
from 15,600 in January to 16,200 in March 2003, despite this
huge increase in the mnimum wage.

Number 1202

MR. WAGONER concl uded that people cannot say the m ninum wage
i ncrease or indexing causes people to |ose jobs. He said all
the factors nust be considered. He estimated that if the

| egi sl ature had adopted a mninum wage with indexing [that took
effect in January 2002], then there would have been a $.14
i ncrease per hour per enployee. He estimated for a business
with 40 enployees with 8 hour shifts, that would account for an
addi tional $11,648 increase for a business which had a $594, 880
payrol . The m ni num wage [indexing] does not affect jobs, he
concl uded.

Nunber 1236

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he agrees that there are
conflicting studies and argunents on both sides. He directed
the commttee's attention to a study in the commttee packet by
Ri chard Vedder and Lowell @Galloway, of OChio University ["The
Econom c | npact of Washington's M ninum Wage Law, "], which uses
t he Card- Krueger nethodol ogy, a sem nal study of m ninmum wage in
New Jersey. This credible study |ooks at the Washington
[indexing] situation and analyzes two neighboring comunities
across the Washi ngton/ldaho borders. The authors concl uded that
24,000 to 48,000 jobs were lost in Washington by the adoption of
t he [ m ni num wage i ndexi ng] .

Nunber 1349

JAY SUTHERLAND spoke in support of HB 199. He said [the m ninmum
wage indexing] wll cost jobs. He nentioned the Spokane/ Coeur
d' Alene study referenced by Representative Rokeberg. He said
his friend owns the Wendy's franchises in both of those narkets.
Si nce [Washi ngton adopted] the CPI indicator, he has chosen not
to build any nore Wendy's in Spokane, Washington, but is
choosing to build restaurants in Coeur d'Al ene, Idaho. He said
it's a much bigger market, and a nunber of other businesses are
noving to the other side of the state Iine. In Al aska,
busi nesses don't have the ability to nove across the state |ine,
but when busi nesses are |looking to come north, they're going to
be looking at the labor climte and how stable it is. In the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 30- April 25, 2003



long term the CPl is going to tell people that this isn't a
pl ace where they want to conme do business. This CPl is a catch-

22; it guarantees that every year there will be inflation. He
pointed out that the custoners have noticed the new prices on
his nmenus and wll notice it again next year with the CPI

I ncr ease. He said he is looking at technology to replace |abor
where he didn't consider it before. He said he likes to give
peopl e jobs, but sooner or later, with the rise of the m ni num
wage, his conmpany wll start making technol ogy investnents and
reduce the |abor in the building. He advised that kids w thout
jobs get into trouble. He reiterated that he's in favor of the
CPl being elimnated.

Number 1454

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCORD asked if M. Sutherland's nmenu prices
have increased before.

MR. SUTHERLAND replied that his menu prices have been flat for
three years until this.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD suggested that his nenu prices didn't
change because the legislature had not addressed the m ninum
wage issue for several years.

MR. SUTHERLAND said [he has maintained his prices by careful]
bidding, looking at different purveyors, [changing] freight

conpanies, and staying in a conpetitive venue. [ Workers' ]
conpensation went up 40 to 42 percent last year, and there w ||
be another increase this comng year. He said he's running

about 10 percent nore |abor than he was running |ast year, due
to the [mninmum wage] increase, not because he has nore
enpl oyees but just because he's paying 26 percent nore to these

enpl oyees. Furt her nor e, there's f eder al t axes, state
unenpl oynent taxes, workers' conpensation. He anticipated that
the increase will be nore than $.14; it will be nore like $.24;

it's going to be very expensive. At that increase, he can start
| ooking at sonme stainless steel and notorized [equipnent] to

take | abor out of his building. He can guarantee that in five
years, the equipnent will be paid for and still functioning.
However, he said he can't guarantee what his |abor costs will be
anynor e.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWCORD related his wunderstanding that M.
Sutherland is saying that the mninum wage was increased too
high and now M. Sutherland can't "stand" automatic increases.
Therefore, he inquired as to what M. Sutherland would suggest

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -31- April 25, 2003



the m ni mum shoul d've been increased to or should it not have
been addressed.

MR, SUTHERLAND answered that he is from the "old school"” that
believes in demand and supply. M. Sutherland said that there
is no one in Anchorage looking for a job that doesn't have a
job. He guaranteed that the market would drive the price. Wen

this cane in, artificial inflation was introduced into the
econony. Therefore, he suspected that this [mninum wage]
increase wll result in the largest [consuner] protection index

in the next 12-19 nonths.
Number 1595

JACK AMON spoke in favor of HB 199. An automatic increase in
wages 1is particularly onerous to snall Dbusinesses because
mandating a yearly wage increase continues to increase costs

Al though the wage increase can be bearable when economc
conditions are good, when econom c conditions falter businesses
could face increasing costs while revenue decreases. He
informed the commttee that this year his business experienced a
decrease in revenue while the highest paid enployees, the
enpl oyees who receive tips, received a wage increase. The
conbination of conditions caused his business to reduce hours
and dramatically reduce staff. As other costs have increased as
well, M. Anmon related that for the first tinme in 20 years he
may not be able to continue with group health insurance. M.
Anon pointed out that mandatory wage increases don't allow for
recessionary conditions. He echoed M. Sutherland' s belief in
payi ng what the market will bear. Forcing an increase in wages
takes away the ability for enployers to enploy nore people.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD asked if M. Anbn was saying that there
woul d be an automatic increase in a recessionary econony.

MR. AMON replied yes, there could be tough econom c conditions
and an inflationary spiral.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD pointed out that when there is a
recession the CPl should reflect that. He related that he had
advocated for a better indicator, the average weekly wage of
enpl oyees in Alaska, in order to nore closely track the wage
conditions in Alaska. He asked if M. Amon would be in favor of
going to the average weekly wage.

MR AMON said that he isn't famliar with that concept, and
therefore didn't want to coment. He noted his genera

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -32- April 25, 2003



opposition to legislating wage increases because they ultimtely
hurt those that they try to help.

Nunber 1762
CHAI R ANDERSON cl osed public testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG related that he disagreed wth
Representative Crawford's statenent that during a recession the
inflation rate would decrease. Represent ati ve Rokeberg rel ated
statistics fromthe Anchorage CPlI from 1986-1990 that illustrate
whil e the amobunt of increase went down, [the m ni num wage] stil
went up. For exanple, during the recession and post-1986 crash
of oil, the wages were raised. The aforenentioned shoul dn't
happen, and that's why this | egislation has been introduced.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said that he had recalled that
statistics showed that in 1986-1987, the average weekly wage did
fall, which is why he had thought it would be nore appropriate
to tie [the m ninum wage] to the average weekly wage. However

in up years the average weekly wage has increased higher than

the CPI, which is problematic too. Representative Crawford
related his belief that $1.50 increase every 4-5 years is nore
devastating that a small, gradual increase.

Nunber 1863

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG poi nted out that one |legislature can't
bi nd another. Representative Quttenberg said, "W should really
look at things wth a jaundiced eye when the previous
| egi slature voted for sonething that took it off the ballot.

The perspective of being a person that works for a mninmm
wage - always feeling that the burden of society is on your
shoul ders. Thi ngs happen, you get «cut, you get hurt.”
Representative Quttenberg infornmed the conmttee that during a
recent community neeting he had heard a |ot of dialogue about
the mnimm wage from 19-year-old students to 38-year-old
students and how one [the 38-year-old student] can't afford to
wor k agai nst another. Those receiving the mnimm wage are the
| east able to afford changes in the econony, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that he is really divided on this
i ssue. He commented that when one is at mninmm wage, the CP
increase is fairly trivial. On the other hand, he indicated his
belief in the free market. Representative Gatto related his
guess that if the CPI is allowed to adjust wages, there won't be
a need for another mninmum wage increase. However, that may not

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 33- April 25, 2003



be enough. Representative Gatto said that his suggestion would
be to hold this legislation [to give this nore thought].

Nunber 2004

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN commented that everyone wants everyone to
have an appropriate wage. Unfortunately, increasing the m ninmm

wage can bring about unintended consequences. He related his
belief that in the big picture increasing the m ninum wage w | |
decrease hiring. Furt hernore, excessive overhead can put

businesses with a slim profit margin out of business and then
those who "we" want to help lose their job. Representative Lynn
related his belief that these things tend to increase prices at

the expense of everyone, including the poor. Representati ve
Lynn informed the conmttee that he considers hinself pro-
busi ness and pro-1abor. He concluded by saying that the facts

seemto | ean nore towards supporting HB 199 than not.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG rel ated his belief that all these levels
are set by the market. As pointed out earlier, there aren't
many m ni num wage jobs in Alaska. Mst of the jobs receiving a
m nimum wage are entry level jobs, or jobs wth tip |evel
conpensation, or at fish processing plants wth guaranteed
overtine. Therefore, alnost all those being paid mninum wage
are nmaking nore than the m ni mum wage. Represent ati ve Rokeberg
pointed out that there is a huge inequity in the state because
Al aska is one of the states that doesn't have tip credit, which
causes these dislocations in enploynment. Once a mninmum wage is
passed and there's a CPI on top of that, a |arge percentage of
those receiving that benefit are already making one to three

times the m ni num wage. Represent ati ve Rokeberg concluded, "I
t hi nk organi zed | abor and everybody won |ast year, all we want
is alittle bit of stability here. | don't want a big fight,
want everybody to be happy, | want to create sone jobs in the
state."

Number 2182

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to report HB 199 out of commttee with
i ndi vi dual recommendations [and the acconpanying fiscal notes].

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG obj ect ed.

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Gatto, Rokeberg
Lynn, and Anderson voted in favor of reporting HB 199 from
conm ttee. Representatives Quttenberg, Crawford, and Dahl strom

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 34- April 25, 2003



voted against it. Therefore, HB 199 was reported out of the
House Labor and Commrerce Standing Commttee by a vote of 4-3.

HB 56- UNFAI R TRADE PRACTI CES ATTY FEES/ COSTS

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO. 56, "An Act relating to the attorney fees and
costs awarded in certain court actions relating to unfair trade
practices; and, if considered court rule changes, anending Rul es
54(d), 79, and 82, Al aska Rules of Civil Procedure."”

Nunber 2243

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA, Al aska State Legislature, spoke as the
sponsor of HB 56 and noted that the Senate has a conpanion bill
sponsored by Senator Dyson. He informed the commttee that as
of a couple of years ago, Alaska has the smallest Consuner
Protection Departnent in the country, which was because of

fiscal constraints. He estimated that there is probably the
same anount of fraud in this state as there is in any other
state. However, the state isn't able to help those who are

victimzed by this; the cases tend to be small and the attorney
general's office helps those they can. He explained that HB 56
nerely says that if the attorney general's office represents
soneone in a consuner fraud case, the full enforcenent costs and

full attorney's fees should be rewarded if the [consuner]
prevail s. Representative Gara viewed this legislation as a
smart way to deal with consumer fraud while dealing w th budget
problenms at the sanme tine. The full enforcenment costs and
attorney’'s fees <can be plowed back into nore consuner
protection, and hopefully the state will nobve past the current
situation in which [only] one-and-a-half attorneys are working
on consunmer fraud cases. He recalled 10 years ago when there
were about eight attorneys and a host of investigators working
on consuner protection cases. This legislation is a way in
which for there to be a consuner enforcenent presence wthout an
i npact on the budget. He noted that the Attorney GCeneral's
O fice supports HB 56. In fact, the adm nistration has stated

it would Iike to have a better consuner enforcenent presences.
Nunber 2355

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG nobved to adopt CSHB 56, Version 23-
LSO300\H, Bannister, 2/24/03, as the working docunent. There
bei ng no objection, Version H was before the commttee.

TAPE 03-41, SIDE B

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 35- April 25, 2003



Nunber 2367

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if Rule 82 applies now and this
| egi sl ati on woul d abrogate Rul e 82.

REPRESENTATIVE GARA confirnmed that this legislation would
abrogate Rule 82. He explained that currently the state is
entitled to Rule 82 fees, which are roughly 20 percent of its
f ees. Simlar to the federal governnment, in certain areas in
whi ch prosecutions are inportant, |aws have been passed to all ow
the state and federal governnment to recover full attorney's
f ees. In federal and state antitrust |law and federal and state
hazardous waste |law, the enforcenment authorities receive full
attorneys fees; this legislation would be along the same vein.
He highlighted that this legislation would be a rule change, and
therefore would require a two-thirds vote.

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG recalled that he had worked on the
| egislation that allowed private causes of action and recovery
for that. He asked if the aforenentioned wasn't working, and
therefore the attorney general has to deal with these cases.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA explained that in 1997 the |legislature
passed a l|aw specifying that private individuals who push a
consuner right's case on their own can receive full conpensation
for their attorney's tine. Al though the private bar has taken
quite a few of these cases, the attorney general's office says
that nmany people cone to them and they can't help them the way
they would Iike. Therefore, this legislation would allow the
attorney general's office to increase its staff a bit in order
to take on these cases. [The 1997 legislation] hasn't worked as
wel | as was hoped.

REPRESENTATI VE  GARA, in response to Representative Gtto,
clarified that Rule 82 allows the prevailing party to recover
roughly 10-20 percent of attorney's fees.

Nunber 2285

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN asked if this legislation wll hel p
consuners and the state's budget situation.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA replied yes.

Nunber 2270

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 36- April 25, 2003



REPRESENTATIVE LYNN noved to report CSHB 56, Version 23-
LSO300\H, Bannister, 2/24/03, out of committee w th individual
reconmendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CSHB 56(L&C) was reported from the House Labor and
Commerce Standing Conmittee.

ADJ OQURNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:58 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -37- April 25, 2003



